
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




19.0  MEETING ROOMS  
The public meeting rooms of the District are operated by the District as a part of its 
service to the community as a limited public forum to provide for the informational, 
cultural, educational and recreational needs of the community.    
  
District public meeting rooms will not be denied to any person or organization because 
of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, unfavorable discharge from military service, political affiliation or physical 
limitations or any other characteristic that is currently protected by applicable law.   
  
The District is not responsible for the content of meetings, programs, or events held on 
the premises. The use of the meeting room facilities does not constitute District 
endorsement of the philosophies, practices, or viewpoints of presenters, participants, or 
attendees.  
  
The District provides the Zimmerman Room and the Meeting Room, referred to as 
“meeting rooms”, for reservation by cardholders associated with the following groups:  
  


• Local clubs, organizations, or groups engaged in civic, cultural, or educational 
activity.  


• Governmental bodies located within the Barrington Public Library District.  
• Businesses, tax-exempt non-profit organizations, or professional associations 


located within the Barrington Public Library District.  
  
District-sponsored programs, events, and meetings take precedent over public requests. 
Reservations from eligible cardholders are approved on a “first-come, first-served” basis 
regardless of the beliefs or affiliations of the group.  
  
Meeting rooms may not be used for:  
  


• Meetings, programs or events involving the sale, advertising, solicitation, or 
promotion of commercial products or services.  


• Private social gatherings or parties.  
• Fundraising activities, except those where the District is the sole beneficiary and 


that have received prior approval from the Executive Director.  
  


The District reserves the right to monitor all activities in meeting rooms and District staff 
reserves the right to enter meeting rooms at any time. Participants in meetings, 
programs, and events are subject to all District policies.  
  
The District reserves the right to terminate meetings, programs, and events disruptive to 
regular Library use and operation or if participants are otherwise in violation of this or 
other District policies.   







  
The District Board of Trustees reserves the right to require a cash deposit or proof of 
bond or insurance to be approved by the Board.  
 
Groups in violation of this policy or other District policies may lose the privilege of 
reserving meeting rooms.  
 
19.1  Meeting Room Reservations  
 
The Meeting Rooms are available to be reserved during and for regular operating hours 
by District cardholders age eighteen and older whose accounts are in good standing.   
 
Reservation requests must be made a minimum of twenty-four hours and a maximum of 
four months in advance of the desired date using the District's online reservation 
system.   
 
Reservation requests must include a designated contact person to answer questions 
from the public about the meeting, program, or event.  
 
The reserving cardholder is the only person authorized to request changes to the 
reservation. Authorization to use a meeting room is not transferrable to any other 
individual, organization or group.  
 
Cardholders, by making a meeting room reservation request, agree to follow 19.2 Rules 
for the Use of Meeting Rooms.   
 
District staff will review reservation requests for compliance with this policy during 
regular business hours. District staff may ask additional questions about the request to 
verify compliance with eligibility and room use.  
 
The District reserves the right to deny reservation requests that are not in compliance 
with this policy or those that reasonably present a threat to the safety of District staff or 
customers. The District reserves the right to request additional information from 
reserving cardholders demonstrating their compliance with this policy.  
 
The District reserves the right to change or cancel any meeting room reservation.  


  
Meeting room users agree to hold harmless, defend and indemnify the District, its Board 
of Trustees, and all District staff, against all loss, liability, damage and expense, including 
attorney’s fees, incurred by any of the parties on account of any injury to or death of 
any person or persons while on the premises as a result of user’s activities.  







  
  
 19.2  Rules for Use of the Meeting Rooms  
 
The booking cardholder must be eighteen years of age. Meetings with attendees under the age 
of eighteen must include adequate adult supervision. 
 
Meeting attendance must meet the minimum and maximum room capacity requirements, 
which are available on the District’s website. 
 


• Customers must arrive promptly for their scheduled meeting, vacate the room at the 
end of their reserved period, and inform the District of cancellation of the meeting. 
Failure to do so may result in loss of future Meeting Room use. 
 


• All meeting activity must be confined to the designated room, including the distribution 
of literature or postings. 
 


• The District cannot store items for customers before or after their meeting, nor facilitate 
the delivery or serving of food brought in for the meeting. 
 


•  Cardholders must leave the room in good condition and free of garbage and are 
responsible for any damage they may cause to furnishings and audiovisual equipment. 


•  Customers must comply with instructions from District staff. 
 


• Publicity for events held in District meeting rooms shall not imply endorsement or 
sponsorship by the District, and must include the following statement: 


The Barrington Area Library provides Meeting Room space as a community service. 
The Barrington Area Library neither sponsors nor endorses this event nor the 
presenting individuals or organizations.  


19.3  Special Meeting Room Equipment  
A piano is available in the first floor Meeting Room for request by music teachers 
presenting recitals of their students and non-profit organizations. One practice session 
may be booked in advance for students, with the teacher present. Teachers may request 
that the piano be tuned in advance of their recital, by the District’s service provider, at 
the teacher’s cost.  


Select meeting rooms are equipped with audiovisual equipment for presentation 
purposes. District staff is not available to assist with the operation of audiovisual 
equipment. While the District endeavors to maintain and monitor all audiovisual 
equipment, the equipment is made available on an ‘as-is’ basis and usage is at 
customers’ own risk.  







Coffee service is available for purchase from the District by groups booking the meeting 
rooms. Only Library-supplied coffee may be used in the coffee machines.  


 

















4.0  LIBRARY CARDS  
The District provides access to Library resources, meeting spaces, and select services by 
issuing individuals Library cards. Unless otherwise prohibited in this or any other District 
policy, cardholders are afforded full access to borrowing and accessing Library 
resources, reserving materials and spaces, using select Library services, and registering 
for select programs.  
  
Cardholders are financially responsible for all materials and charges associated with the 
use of their Library cards unless otherwise indicated in this policy.  
  
Library cards are considered to be in good standing for borrowing and other services if 
the total charges on the card are less than $25.00 and the card is not expired.  


  
4.1  Resident Cards  


All residents of the Barrington Public Library District and individuals who own or rent 
property within the District are eligible for a Library card.  
  
For residents or eligible property owners age fourteen and up, a photo ID and proof of 
residence or property ownership are required at the time of registration. Acceptable 
documents proving residence must include an in-District address. Post office box 
addresses are not considered valid in-District addresses when registering. Acceptable 
documents can take the following forms:  
  


• Government-issued photo ID  
• Current property tax bill  
• School ID with name  
• Current bank or other financial statement  
• Current utility bill  
• Pay stub  
• Illinois motor vehicle registration  


  
Children age thirteen and under may register for a Library card in their own name when 
accompanied by the child’s parent or legal guardian and proof of residency. The child’s 
parent or legal guardian is required to sign the child’s application and assumes financial 
responsibility for all materials and charges associated with the use of the child’s card. 
Access to a child’s Library records by parents or legal guardians is prescribed in 23.0 
Records Retention.  
  
Resident cards are valid for three years after the date of registration and may be 
renewed as long as the holder meets the above residency criteria. and has a Library card 
account in good standing.  
  
  


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.49", First line:  0"







4.2  Business and Non-Profit Cards  
Businesses and tax-exempt non-profit organizations recognized under Section 501 of the 
Internal Revenue Code based in the Barrington Public Library District are eligible for a 
Library card in the name of their business or non-profit organization.  
  
Business and non-profit registrants must present a photo ID and proof of an in-District 
business address. Post office boxes may be considered valid in-district addresses only for 
non-profits based in the District when registering. Acceptable documents can take the 
following forms:  
  


• Business license  
• Certificate of occupancy  
• Current property tax bill  
• Current utility bill  
• IRS Form 990 or determination letter  


  
Library cards registered to businesses and non-profits are valid for one year after the 
date of registration and may be renewed as long as the holder meets the above criteria. 
and has a Library card account in good standing.  


  
4.3  Government Agency Cards  


Municipalities, local units of government, and school districts, as defined in Article VII of 
the Constitution of the State of Illinois, located in or with jurisdiction in part of the 
Barrington Public Library District, are eligible to register for a government agency card 
granting the organization the ability to use District meeting rooms. Government agency 
cards cannot be used to receive any other service.  
  
Government registrants must present a letter of intent to register for a government 
agency card on official stationery signed by the administrator of that unit of government 
at the time of registration. The letter must designate an individual cardholder and 
authorize that cardholder as the sole user of the card.  
  
Government agency cards are valid for one year after the date of registration and may 
be renewed.  


  
4.4  Non-Resident Cards  


Pursuant to 23 Ill. Adm. Code 3050.25, individuals who do not reside or own property 
within the Barrington Public Library District may purchase a Library card at a rate set by 
the tax bill method described by 23 Ill. Adm. Code 3050.60 and in accordance with the 
District Board of Trustees’ Annual Resolution Authorizing Public Library District Non-
Resident Cards:  
  







• For individuals who rent their principal residence, the rate is set at 15% of that 
individual’s monthly rent.  


• For individuals who own their principal residence, the rate is set at the District’s 
tax rate including all special levies applied to the assessed valuation of that 
residence.  


  
Non-resident registrants must present a photo ID and a current rent receipt or current 
property tax bill, depending on the status of their principal residence, to calculate the 
rate described above.  
  
Once purchased, the non-resident cardholder may associate other members of their 
household residing at the same address to their Library card. Each member will receive 
their own unique Library card. Children under thirteen in non-resident cardholder 
households are subject to the registration requirements in 4.1 Resident Cards.  
  
Non-resident cards are valid for one year after the date of purchase and non-resident 
cards in good standing may be renewed annually with payment meeting the rate 
schedule described above.  


  
4.5  Reciprocal Borrowers  


Customers who are cardholders at other libraries participating in the statewide 
reciprocal borrowing program outlined in the Reaching Across Illinois Library System 
Resource Sharing Plan may register their cards with the District. Registered reciprocal 
borrowers are able to borrow selected circulating materials and use District public 
access computers.  
  
Reciprocal borrowers must present their resident library card from a participating library 
and a photo ID at the time of registration.  
  
Reciprocal borrower registrations are valid for three years and may be renewed as long 
as the cardholder meets the above criteria and has a library card in good standing.  


 








7.0  LIBRARY RESOURCE BORROWING  
Customers with Library cards are permitted and encouraged to borrow in good standing 
are able to borrow Library materials unless otherwise restricted by 4.0 Library Cardsthis 
or any other District policy.  


The District is not responsible for any damage to any equipment used to listen to, view, 
or otherwise use Library materials.  


The District reserves the right to restrict access to select Library resources to customers 
who do not meet age criteria in the Resource Borrowing Procedure. 


7.1  Loan Period and Renewals  
The loan periods of materials available for borrowing are available on the District 
website and at points of service subject to the District’s Loan Rule Table. The District 
reserves the right to limit the quantities of materials available for borrowing and to 
temporarily place select groups of materials on short-term loans at the discretion of 
District staff.  


Eligible materials may be renewed for up to two loan periods as long asif they have not 
been requested by another customer.  


7.2 Extended Use ChargesOverdue Materials  
Customers failing to return Library materials on or before the date due will be charged a 
daily fee pursuant to the schedule in District’s Loan Rule Table, available on the District’s 
website and at points of service. Materials retained by customers past their loan period 
are considered overdue. Library card accounts with any materials over 28 days overdue 
will be paused at the end of the 28th day. 


Paused accounts may not be used to borrow physical materials until all materials over 
28 days overdue on that account are returned, renewed, or the replacement cost is paid 
according to 7.4 Lost or Damaged Materials. 


While the District will endeavor to notify customers of materials in overdue status, such 
notification is a courtesy. The timely return of District materials is the sole responsibility 
of the customer. 


No single customer shall pay in excess of the maximum fee associated with each item 
listed or the cost of the item plus a $5.00 processing fee, whichever is less.  


The District reserves the right to charge a fee for checks that are returned for 
insufficient funds used to pay Library card charges.  


Formatted: Superscript







7.3  Hold Requests  
Hold requests may be placed on eligible circulating materials. This service is available to 
District cardholders only. Requested items may only be borrowed on the Library card 
that initiated the request.  


When more than one hold request has been placed for the same item, they will be 
fulfilled in the order in which they were received. Specific hold dates will not be 
honored.   


Items will be held for pickup for six days after the request is fulfilled. If not picked up 
during that time, the items will be returned to circulation.  
 


7.4  Lost or Damaged Materials  
Customers are financially responsible for the loss of or damage to Library materials they 
borrow, including containers and other constituent parts.  
 
Materials over 28 days overdue will be considered lost and charged accordingly. 
  
The current replacement cost plus a non-refundable $5.00 processing fee will be 
charged for lost materials or materials too badly damaged to be circulated further. This 
charge is in lieu of extended use charges. For items with damaged containers or missing 
constituent parts, customers will be charged the cost of those containers or parts. 
Customer-supplied replacement materials, containers, or parts will not be accepted by 
the District.  
  
Materials over twenty-eight days overdue will be considered lost and charged 
accordingly.  
Lost material charges on library card accounts will be reversed upon return of the lost 
material to the District or payment of the replacement cost. 
  
Replacement costs paid by customers will be refunded for lost materials if the materials 
are returned in good condition within six months90 days of when the materials were 
declared lost. Materials returned after the above six month90 day period are not eligible 
for a refund. Refunds will be administered by mail within 60sixty days of an accepted 
return.  
 
The District reserves the right to charge a fee for checks that are returned for 
insufficient funds used to pay Library card charges.  


 
 
  
The District reserves the right to pursue action to secure the return of materials or 
payment for their replacement including but not limited to engaging collection agencies, 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"







pursuing criminal charges, and pursuing civil litigation. In the event these actions are 
taken, the cardholder will be held liable for the current replacement cost, processing 
fees, legal fees, collection agency fees, and any other related charges.    








BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 


7:00 P.M. 
PUBLIC HEARING – 7 P.M. 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
President 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
Secretary 
 
III. AUDIENCE RECOGNITION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
  Public Comment 
  
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  


Regular Meeting of August 10, 20120 (Action Required) 
 


V. MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS/BUSINESS 
 
President 


President's report 
Staff Anniversaries and Retirements 
 


Treasurer 
Financial Report – August (Action Required)  
Treasurer's report/Bills for Payment (Action Required) 
 


Executive Director 
Executive Director's Report  
Update on Teaching Garden  
      


VI. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES  
 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 


a. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding with the Barrington Breakfast Rotary 
Club (Action Required) 


b. Consideration of Amendments to Public Policy Manual (Action Required) 
i. 4.0 Library Cards 
ii. 7.0 Resource Borrowing 
iii. 11.0  Gifts of Materials and/or Cash 
iv. 14.0  Photography and Recording 
v. 19.0  Meeting Rooms 







c. Consideration of Ordinance 2020-3, Ordinance providing for budget and appropriations 
of Barrington Public Library District, Cook, Kane, Lake and McHenry Counties, Illinois for 
the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021.  (Action Required) 


 
d. Consideration of Ordinance 2020-4, Ordinance authorizing levy of an additional tax for 


the maintenance, repairs, and alteration of the library building and equipment. (Action 
Required) 
 


e. Consideration of Resolution 2020-5,  Resolution Providing for a Fund Transfer to the 
Special Reserve Fund.  (Action Required) 
 


f. Consideration of Resolution 2020-6, Resolution Providing for a Fund Transfer to the 
Audit Fund.  (Action Required) 
 


g. Consideration of Resolution 2020-7, Resolution in Appreciation of Carolyn Welch 
Clifford  (Action Required) 
 


IX. GENERAL INFORMATION 
    


X. ADJOURNMENT  








PART I - Estimated Revenue Available


Item 1:    Balance on hand as of July 1, 2020 9,153,135$      


Item 2:    Receipts during current fiscal year from library district levy of 
2019 and prior years, and receipts from other sources such as fines, 
rentals, donations, interest, and grants 7,495,818$      


TOTAL ESTIMATED AMOUNT AVAILABLE 16,648,953$    


PART II - Estimated Expenditures


GENERAL FUND (75 ILCS 16/35-5)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Salaries 3,295,580$      4,000,000$         


Ordinance 2020-3


ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS OF THE BARRINGTON PUBLIC 
LIBRARY DISTRICT, COOK, KANE, LAKE, AND MCHENRY COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 


BEGINNING JULY 1, 2020 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2021


WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District, Cook, Kane, 
Lake, and McHenry Counties, Illinois, has prepared or caused to be prepared a tentative form of the 
Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance for said Library District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2020 and ending June 30, 2021; and


WHEREAS, the Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance has been conveniently 
available for public inspection since June 9, 2020, over thirty (30) days prior to final action thereon; and


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held as to such Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance on September 9, 2019, notice of which was given on June 17, 2019, over thirty (30) days 
thereto;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public 
Library District, Cook, Kane, Lake, and McHenry Counties, Illinois, as follows: 


Section 1: That the amounts hereinafter set forth, or so much thereof as may be authorized by law, and 
as may be needed or deemed necessary to defray all expenses and liabilities of the Barrington Public 
Library District, be and the same hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes of the Barrington 
Public Library District, Cook, Kane, Lake, and McHenry Counties, Illinois, as hereinafter specified for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021.


Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of the amount available and expenditures 
and the appropriations contained therein be and the same is hereby adopted as the Budget and 
Appropriation for this Public Library District for this fiscal year; and the sum of $16,648,953 or as much 
thereof as may be authorized by law, is hereby appropriated for the purpose of the Barrington Public 
Library District, as hereinafter specified for said fiscal year.







Staff Insurance Benefits 341,670$         750,000$            
Staff Development and Training 94,795$           230,000$            
Library Materials 863,246$         1,650,000$         
Electronic Information 167,329$         400,000$            
Library Programs 79,500$           200,000$            
Equipment Maintenance 13,900$           45,000$              
Administrative and Operating Expense 120,125$         200,000$            
Facility Operating Expense 203,523$         500,000$            
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 215,100$         920,500$            
Technology Hardware and Software 513,753$         1,288,265$         
Capital Assets Contingency 150,000$         1,518,164$         
Professional Services 125,192$         250,000$            
Trustee Expense Reimbursement 4,327$              8,833$                


TOTAL ESTIMATED GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 6,188,039$      11,960,762$      


ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND (IMRF) FUND (40 ILCS 5/7-171)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


IMRF 350,000$         463,020$            


TOTAL ESTIMATED IMRF FUND EXPENDITURES 350,000$         463,020$            


SOCIAL SECURITY FUND (40 ILCS 5/21-110, 5/21-110.1)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Medicare 47,167$           76,035$              
FICA 201,682$         331,200$            


TOTAL ESTIMATED SOCIAL SECURITY FUND EXPENDITURES 248,849$         407,235$            


AUDIT FUND (50 ILCS 310/1, 310/9)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Audit 12,300$           15,000$              


TOTAL ESTIMATED AUDIT FUND EXPENDITURES 12,300$           15,000$              


SPECIAL RESERVE FUND (75 ILCS 16/40-50)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Library Building and Grounds Renovation 585,976$         2,156,086$         
Technology Hardware and Software 41,000$           145,358$            


TOTAL ESTIMATED SPECIAL RESERVE FUND EXPENDITURES 626,976$         2,301,444$         


BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND (75 ILCS 16/35-5)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Facility Maintenance and Repair 230,390$         427,652$            
Equipment Maintenance 112,200$         208,267$            
Site Maintenance 102,260$         189,816$            







Capital Assets Contingency 100,000$         185,621$            


TOTAL ESTIMATED BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND EXPENDITURES 544,850$         1,011,356$         


INSURANCE FUND (745 ILCS 10/9-107)
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Liability, Workers' Compensation, and Unemployment Insurance 90,000$           120,000$            


TOTAL ESTIMATED INSURANCE FUND EXPENDITURES 90,000$           120,000$            


GIFT AND DONATION FUND
Estimated Expenditures Budget Appropriation


Library Programs 33,700$           120,136$            
Library Materials -$                  250,000$            


TOTAL ESTIMATED GIFT AND DONATION FUND EXPENDITURES 33,700$           370,136$            


GENERAL FUND 11,960,762$    


IMRF FUND 463,020$         


SOCIAL SECURITY 407,235$         


AUDIT FUND 15,000$           


SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 2,301,444$      


BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND 1,011,356$      


INSURANCE FUND 120,000$         


GIFT AND DONATION FUND 370,136$         


TOTAL APPROPRIATION 16,648,953$    


Section 4: That all unexpended balances of any item or items of any general appropriation in this 
Ordinance be expended in making up any insufficiency in any other item or items in the same general 
appropriation and for the same general purpose of any like appropriation made by this Ordinance. 


Section 6: The Board of Trustees accumulates unexpended balances of the proceeds received annually 
from annual public library taxes, not in excess of statutory limits, in a Special Reserve Fund for the 
purposes specified in 75 ILCS 16/40-5 or for emergency expenditures for the repair of the existing 
library building or its equipment. The Board of Trustees has developed a plan for expenditures from the 
Special Reserve Fund as authorized by 75 ILCS 16/40-50.


Section 3: That the amounts appropriated for library purposes for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 
and ending June 30, 2021, by fund shall be as follows:







Section 7: That a copy of this Ordinance in tentative form has been available for convenient public 
inspection at the Barrington Public Library District for over thirty (30) days with notice thereof given by 
posting and by publication in the Daily Herald, a newspaper with a general circulation within this 
District, for over thirty (30) days in substantially the following form:


The Board of Library Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District has adopted a Tentative 
Budget and Appropriation Ordinance, a copy of which is on file and available for public 
inspection during regular business hours at the Barrington Area Library, 505 North Northwest 
Highway, Barrington, Illinois.  A Public Hearing on said Ordinance will be held on September 14, 
2020, at 7:00 p.m. in the Administrative Conference Room of the Barrington Area Library.


Section 8: That if any section, subdivision, or sentence of this Ordinance shall for for any reason be held 
invalid or to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of 
this Ordinance.


Section 9: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with any provision of this Ordinance be 
and the same are hereby repealed.


Section 10: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, and 
publication according to law.


ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District, Cook, Kane, Lake, and 
McHenry Counties, Illinois on this 14th day of September, 2020, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:


AYES:


NAYS:


ABSENT:


ABSTAIN:


APPROVED:


_____________________________
President, Board of Trustees of the 
Barrington Public Library District


ATTEST:
_____________________________
Secretary, Board of Trustees of the
Barrington Public Library District


Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer, 


None


None


None








1 
 


MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
OF THE BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 


 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Library Trustees was held on August 10, 2020, at 7:00 p.m.  Due to 
health and safety concerns related to the COVID-19 virus, this meeting was held via 
videoconference/conference call  pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/7(e) in accordance with the July 24, 2020 
Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation for the State of Illinois.  Notice of this meeting was sent to the board 
and the press on August 7, 2020. 
 
Present and acting as trustees were: 
Donald Minner, President  
Carolyn Welch Clifford, Vice President 
Carrie F. Carr, Treasurer 
Denise Tenyer, Secretary 
Jennifer Lucas, Trustee 
Jan Miller, Trustee 
William Pizzi, Trustee 
 
Also in attendance were: 
Jesse Henning, Executive Director 
Cheryl Riendeau, Finance Manager 
Lisa Stordahl, Office Manager 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
President Minner called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  
 
II. ROLL CALL 
Lisa Stordahl called the roll. 
 
III. AUDIENCE RECOGNITION AND PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no members of the public present. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
The minutes from the July 13, 2020, Regular Meeting were reviewed.  President Minner asked if there 
were any questions or corrections to be made.  There were none.  A motion to approve the Regular 
Meeting minutes was made by President Minner and seconded by Trustee Pizzi. 
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
V. MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS / BUSINESS 
President’s Report 
President Minner announced the retirements of longtime staff members Fanny Liu and Nancy Nash.  The 
board is appreciative of their long tenure and wishes them well in their retirement. 







2 
 


 
President Minner asked Director Henning to commend staff on their hard work preparing for the 
reopening, and that the new “Browse and Borrow” layout looks great and is very organized.   He also 
noted that Karen McBride, the library’s Public Information Manager, is doing an excellent job with social 
media and that her Instagram posts are knocking it out of the park.   Trustee Pizzi noted that the mask 
signage at the library’s entrance is the best he has seen anywhere. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Treasurer Carr presented the Treasurer’s report. The beginning balance was $9,153,135.69 with receipts 
of $835,249.70 and expenditures of $502,399.07; leaving an ending balance of $9,485,986.32. One month 
into the new fiscal year, revenues were 10.63% of anticipated and expenditures were 6.25% of the 
budget.  Treasurer Carr moved to approve the Treasurer’s Report and bills for payment as presented.  
Secretary Tenyer seconded the motion.   
 
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
Director Henning informed the board that under guidance of Klein, Thorpe, and Jenkins, the library district 
has verified the Fourth Amended Complaint in the case against the Village of Hoffman Estates and Sears 
Holdings.  The goal is to dissolve the Sears EDA and have the tax increments held redistributed to the 
taxing districts.  Sears Holdings and the Village will likely settle, which would route some of the funds from 
the EDA to both of those bodies. 
 
Parking Lot Pick-Up numbers have declined substantially with the reopening of the library on July 27.  The 
new Browse and Borrow model is working well with customers coming in to browse and pick up items.  
The maximum number of customers in the building was 60, which is 38% of our maximum capacity under 
the Illinois Department of Public Health Guidelines.  It was noted that customers are being more efficient 
with their visits and stocking up when they come.   
 
The Management Team has worked to revise the Pandemic Reopening Plan guided by customer feedback 
within the first weeks of reopening, resulting in a general timeline of when and which services will be 
restored in the coming months.  Reopening will continue in the following stages as long as Region 9 stays 
in Phase 4 and is not under any mitigation steps. 
  


• Service to Remote pickup lockers and community book drops will be restored September 1. 
• The library’s Business/Technology Center should reopen mid-September. 


o Study Rooms and business cubicles will be made available for reservation at reduced 
occupancy. 


o A limited number of computer stations will be made available for reservations of fixed 
duration. 


o MakerLab in-person services will resume by appointment only. 







3 
 


• The Study Rooms on the second floor may be made available for reservation at reduced occupancy 
after a review of  the Study Room reopening in Business/Technology 


• Public worktables and chairs will return at 25% capacity following the second floor study rooms 
and an assessment of customer demand. 


• Meeting Room reservations will return after all of the above can be safely achieved. 
 
It was noted that in-person programming and the Youth Services play equipment, toys, and manipulatives 
will likely not return until Phase 5. 
 
The board expressed some concerns regarding the reopening of study rooms.  Director Henning said the 
new model will look much different than in the past.  Reopened rooms will allow less people and will be 
set for specific times so that cleaning can occur between visits.   
 
VI. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 
Trustees Miller and Pizzi have completed the annual Secretary’s Audit and found that all of the necessary 
documents and records for the past fiscal year were in order. 
 
 VII. OLD BUSINESS 
None. 
  
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
Director Henning presented information from the 2019/2020 IPLAR Report.  Each year, all public libraries 
in Illinois must submit the requested statistics to the Illinois State Library, who in turn use the data to 
participate in the national Public Library Survey for the Institute of Museum and Library Services.   The 
IPLAR Report provides an annual snapshot of our library’s collections, space, programs and technology.   
 
After reviewing the information and statistics presented in the IPLAR Report, Treasurer Carr made a 
motion to authorize Director Henning to submit the 2019-2020 IPLAR Report to the Illinois State Library.  
Vice President Clifford seconded the motion.   
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
Director Henning presented the COVID-19 Relief Fund Intergovernmental Agreement with Lake County for 
the board to consider.  This IGA will help the library recoup some of the costs associated with necessary 
expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with response to the Corona Virus Disease.  
President Minner made a motion to approve  the COVID-19 Relief Fund Intergovernmental Agreement 
with Lake County, which was seconded by Trustee Lucas. 
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 







4 
 


IX. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
VI: ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Trustee Miller moved to adjourn the meeting.  Treasurer Carr seconded 
the motion.    
 
Ayes:  Carr, Clifford, Lucas, Miller, Minner, Pizzi, Tenyer 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
Motion: CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m.     


 
 


 
 ____________________________________________ 


 
                                                                        Secretary 


/s/ Denise Tenyer













































































































































































NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING AND  
REGULAR MEETING    


 


The Board of Library Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District will 


hold a Public Hearing and Regular Meeting on September 14, 2020 at 7:00 


p.m. in the Administration Board Room of the Barrington Area Library, 505 


North Northwest Highway, Barrington, Illinois.   Due to health and safety 


concerns related to the COVID-19 virus, this meeting will be held via  


videoconference/conference call  pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/7(e) in accordance 


with the July 24, 2020 Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation for the State of 


Illinois. 


 


____________________________ 


Secretary 


  
Please use the link below to join the webinar: 
https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/j/99130606586?pwd=Zzk5Vi9SVzloQXlBb04yL1h0dTBaQT09 
Use Passcode 855893 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +13126266799,,99130606586#,,,,,,0#,,855893# 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 312 626 6799  
Webinar ID: 991 3060 6586 
Passcode: 855893 
    International numbers available: https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/u/acwhJunLGY 
  
  
  



https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/j/99130606586?pwd=Zzk5Vi9SVzloQXlBb04yL1h0dTBaQT09

https://balibrary-org.zoom.us/u/acwhJunLGY






 383421_1 


 


ORDINANCE NO. 2020-4 
 


ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING LEVY OF AN ADDITIONAL TAX FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF SITES AND BUILDINGS, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 


AND EQUIPMENT OF BUILDINGS, FOR THE RENTAL OF BUILDINGS 
REQUIRED FOR LIBRARY PURPOSES AND FOR THE MAINTENANCE, 


REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS OF THE LIBRARY BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT 
 


WHEREAS, Section 35-5 of the Illinois Public Library District Act of 1991, (75 ILCS 16/35-5), 


authorized the levy of an additional tax of .02% of the value of all the taxable property in the District, as 


equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue, for the purchase of sites and buildings, for the 


construction and equipment of buildings, for the rental of buildings required for library purposes and for 


the maintenance, repairs and alterations of the library building and equipment: 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Library Trustees of the 


BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, Lake, Cook, Kane and McHenry Counties, Illinois, that 


they hereby determine to levy an additional tax of .02% of the value of all the taxable property in the 


District, as equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue, for the purchase of sites and 


buildings, for the construction and equipment of buildings, for the rental of buildings required for library 


purposes and for the maintenance, repairs and alterations of the library building and equipment. 


BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that within fifteen (15) days after the adoption of this Ordinance, 


the Secretary shall publish it at least once in one or more newspapers published in the District, or if 


no newspaper is published therein, then in one or more newspapers with a general circulation within 


the District. 


BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that if no petition is filed with the Board of Library Trustees by 


October 19, 2020, thirty days after the aforesaid publication, the District shall then proceed with the levy 


of said additional tax. However, if within the thirty (30) day period, a petition is filed with the Board of 


Library Trustees, signed by electors of the District equal in number to 3577 or more of electors in the 


Library District, asking that the question of levying such a .02% tax be submitted to the electors of the 


District, the question shall be submitted to the electors thereof; the question shall be submitted at the 


Consolidated General Election on April 6, 2021. If a majority of votes cast upon the question are in 







 383421_1 2 


favor thereof, the Board of Library Trustees may levy the additional tax.  The Secretary of the District 


shall provide a petition form to any individual requesting one. 


ADOPTED this 14th day of September, 2020, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 


 


AYES:  


NAYS:   


ABSENT:    


APPROVED by me this 14th day of September, 2020. 


 


 


ATTEST:         ___________________ 
        President 
 
 
 
 
     _____ 
 Secretary 
 
 
Published by me this 18th day of September, 2020. 
 








11.0  GIFTS OF MATERIALS AND/OR CASH  
The District Board of Trustees encourages monetary gifts, bequests, endowments, and 
gifts of property and materials from individuals, groups, foundations, or corporations to 
supplement District services.  


  
11.1  Monetary Gifts  


Monetary gifts without restriction may be accepted and added to the District’s Gift Fund 
to be used for the purchase of Library materials, equipment, programs, or capital 
projects.  
  
Monetary gifts to be used as a restricted gift or endowment fund may be accepted by 
the District. Such funds require a minimum donation of $25,000 and will be accepted if 
the proposed restriction or use is consistent with the mission and objectives of the 
District.  
  


The Board of Trustees may remove all restrictions from a gift fund when, as a result of any 
restriction, there has been no expenditure from the fund for at least two years and the Board 
determines that the restrictions do not reasonably provide a benefit for the District.  


  
The Board of Trustees reserves the right to accept or refuse any monetary gift.  
  


11.2  Tangible Gifts  
Gifts of print, audiovisual, or electronic material to the Library collection may be 
accepted by the District with the explicit understanding that they may or may not be 
added to the collection in accordance with 9.0 Library Resource Selection.   
  
Donations of material not selected for addition to the collection will be recycled or 
otherwise disposed.  
  
Gifts of artwork may be accepted pursuant to 15.0 Art Objects.  
  
The Board of Trustees will decide to accept real property, equipment, furnishings, or 
other tangible property based on the following criteria:  
  


• Operational need  
• Physical space constraints  
• Security requirements  
• Expense and frequency of maintenance  
• Impact on staff time  


  
All tangible gifts become the sole property of the District and may be used, sold, given 
away, or otherwise disposed of by the Board of Trustees.   
  


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"







The Board of Trustees reserves the right to accept or refuse any gift of property or 
materials.   







 








14.0  PHOTOGRAPHY AND RECORDING  
The District may accommodate requests for photography or videographyfilming 
provided such photography or videographyfilming does not interfere with ordinary 
District operations, infringe upon customers’ right to privacy, or violate any District 
policy.  


Photography or videography is generally permitted if it is for general Library promotion 
by the District or media, student projects, and/or strictly for personal use. Visitors may 
take casual photographs or video recordings in the Library.  


For purposes of this policy, ‘photography’ and ‘photograph’ or filming refers to all 
current and future static, still or video imaging.  


14.1  Interior Photography  
Permission is not required for customers taking photographs  or videos in public areas of 
District buildings for personal, noncommercial use if no tripods, lights, or other 
specialized equipment is used.  


If tripods, lights, or other specialized pieces of photography equipment are to be used, 
requests must be made at least twenty-four hours in advance by contacting the Public 
Information Manager and obtaining approval prior to the taking of photographs. or 
videos.  


Under no circumstances may the public or members of the media take photographs, 
film, or live stream without the express permission of any District customers or staff 
who would be prominently included within the composition.   


If any person to be photographed or filmed is under 18 years of age, permission must be 
obtained by the photographer or videographer from a parent or adult caregiver on 
behalf of said minor child.  


Individuals who photograph or film inside District buildings must honor requests from 
customers and staff who do not want to be included in photos or filmthe composition.  


The District reserves the right to restrict or prohibit photography in areas with 
reasonable expectations of privacy, including restrooms and District staff spaces. District 
access by photographers may be limited either by time constraints or to specific areas 
depending upon such impact or effect such sessions could have on other District 
customers.  


In all instances, the District reserves the right to cease photography or filming if it results 
in disruption of the ordinary Library environment or violation of District policies.  


All photography and recording must be carried out so as not to disturb District 
customers or staff and not block aisles, walkways, stairwells, doors or exits.  







  
The District accepts no liability for the use of photos or filmphotographs resulting from 
this activity. Any individual using the Library shall be held responsible for willful or 
accidental damage to District buildings, grounds, collections or furniture caused by the 
individual or group.  
  


14.2  Exterior Photography  
Permission is not required for customers taking photographs or videos outside of District 
buildings or on District property as long as the activity does not block or otherwise 
disturb customers or staff entering or exiting any District building.  


  
14.3  Commercial Photography  


The District may permit use of its facilities for the taking of commercial photographs or 
videos if the project does not interfere with the mission of the District and is in 
accordance with all District policies. The District will charge a fee to offset costs incurred 
to provide access to the facility and prior permission must be sought at least one week 
in advance by contacting the Public Information Manager.  
  


14.4  District Photography  
The District reserves the right to use photographs , video recordings, or audio recordings 
taken on District property or at events where the District has a presence for publicity 
purposes in print, digital, and online media.  
  
All District customers consent to the use of their photo taken on District property or at 
the aforementioned events unless they specifically inform staff of an objection to such 
use. No names of customers will be used in conjunction with photographs , video 
recordings, or audio recordings without express consent.  


  
14.5  Open Meetings Act Exception  


Notwithstanding any other section of this policy to the contrary, any person may record 
the proceedings at Library District meetings required to be open under the Illinois Open 
Meetings Act by tape, film, or other means, provided, however:  
  


• Recording shall not interfere with the overall decorum and proceedings of the 
meeting (i.e., the machine and/or operator must be quiet and unobtrusive).  


• The machine and/or operator shall not interfere with the auditory rights of other 
citizens.  


• No recording or filming will be allowed as set forth under 735 ILCS 5/8-701.    
  
That statute provides that “no witness shall be compelled to testify in any proceeding 
conducted by a court, commission, administrative agency or other tribunal in this State if 
any portion of his or her testimony is to be broadcast or televised or if motion pictures 
are to be taken of him or her while he or she is testifying.”  In this regard, Section 2.05 of 
the Open Meetings Act provides that, “[i]f a witness at any meeting required to be open 







by this Act which is conducted by a commission, administrative agency or other tribunal 
refuses to testify on the grounds that he may not be compelled to testify if any portion of 
his testimony is to be broadcast or televised or if motion pictures are to be taken of him 
while he is testifying, refuses to testify, the authority holding the meetings shall prohibit 
such recording during the testimony of the witness.”  (5 ILCS 120/2.05)   
  
The District will make reasonable accommodations for those wishing to record the 
meeting and request they stay in the area designated for the public.  


 








 
     RESOLUTION 2020-5 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 


PROVIDING FOR A FUND TRANSFER TO THE SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 
 
 WHEREAS, The Public Library District Act of 1991 (75 ILCS 16) provides for the 
establishment of a special reserve fund for expenditures related to the erection of library 
buildings, the purchase of a building, the purchase of sites for such buildings, the repair, 
remodeling, or improvement of an existing library building, the building of an addition to an 
existing library building, the furnishing of necessary equipment for a library building, the 
acquisition of library materials, the purchase of electronic data storage and retrieval facilities in 
connection with the purchase or construction of a new library building or the expansion of an 
existing library building, or emergency expenditures for the repair of an existing library building 
or its equipment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, 75 ILCS 16/40-50 authorizes the Board of Trustees of an Illinois public library 
district to transfer unexpended balances of the proceeds received annually from annual public 
library taxes if the board has resolved to develop and adopt a plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, 75 ILCS 16/40-50 requires that the Board of Trustees provide for the 
accumulation of said unexpended balances in its annual appropriation ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District has established 
such a Special Reserve Fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District has developed 
and adopted a Special Reserve Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has provided for the accumulation of said unexpended 
balances in Ordinance 2020-3 - Ordinance providing for the budget and appropriations of the 
Barrington Public Library District, Cook, Kane, Lake, and McHenry Counties, Illinois, for the fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has accumulated $1,790,387.18 in unexpended 
proceeds received in the fiscal year in its General Fund during the fiscal year beginning July, 1 
2019 and ending June 30, 2020. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT resolved by the Board of Library Trustees of the Barrington 
Public Library District, Lake, Cook, Kane, and McHenry Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 Section 1: It is hereby directed that the sum of $586,000.00 be transferred forthwith 
from the General Fund to the Special Reserve Fund, and the Treasurer of this Library District is 
directed to take such appropriate action as is necessary to effect this fund transfer. 
 
 Section 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption as provided 
by law. 


 
 







Adopted this 14th day of September, 2020. 
 
AYES: _____________________________________________________________  


   
NAYS: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________________________       
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


______________________________ 
President, Board of Trustees, 
Barrington Public Library District 


ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees, 
Barrington Public Library District 
 








 
     RESOLUTION 2020-6 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 


PROVIDING FOR A FUND TRANSFER TO THE AUDIT FUND 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governmental Account Audit Act (50 ILCS 310/9) requires that expenses 
of an audit of the Library District’s public accounts be paid by the Library District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the expenses of such audit are made from the Audit Fund of the Library 
District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the accumulated balance and forthcoming tax receipts in the Audit Fund are 
insufficient to fund said audit expenses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Library District’s General Fund contains $5,315,113.70 of accumulated 
tax receipts for the establishment, maintenance, and support of the District pursuant to the 
Illinois Public Library District Act of 1991 (75 ILCS 16/35-5). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public 
Library District, Lake, Cook, Kane, and McHenry Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 Section 1: It is hereby directed that the sum of $10,273.62 be transferred forthwith from 
the General Fund to the Audit Fund, and the Treasurer of this Library District is directed to take 
such appropriate action as is necessary to effect this fund transfer. 
 
 Section 2: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption as provided 
by law. 


 
 
Adopted this 14th day of September, 2020. 
 
AYES: _____________________________________________________________  


   
NAYS: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ____________________________________________________________       
            
 
 
 


______________________________ 
President, Board of Trustees, 
Barrington Public Library District 


ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees, 
Barrington Public Library District 








Resolution 2020-7 


A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR CAROLYN WELCH CLIFFORD BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 


THE BARRINGTON PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 


 


WHEREAS, Carolyn Welch Clifford began her tenure on the Barrington Public Library District 


Board of Trustees in July of 2001 and currently serves as the Vice President of the Board; and  


WHEREAS, Carolyn served as a passionate advocate for the Library, its programs, services, and 


staff; volunteered countless hours of her time on behalf of the Library’s patrons; provided wise counsel 


to Library leaders and Board of Trustees; and championed the Library’s objectives to stimulate 


imagination, develop information fluency, foster lifelong learning, and create young readers; and 


WHEREAS, Carolyn served on the Board during a major District facility redesign and 


revitalization project in 2013 and 2014 in which the Library’s public space was transformed and 


reimagined for library services in the 21st century; and 


WHEREAS, as Carolyn retires from the Board of Trustees, the Board wishes to express its 


admiration and appreciation for her leadership, commitment, and years of service to the District. 


NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public Library 


District that the Board honors, thanks, and commends Carolyn for her years of service and guidance to 


the District, wishes her the best in her future endeavors, and hereby declares her a Permanent 


Cardholder of the Barrington Area Library granting her all the rights and privileges of that distinction. 


Adopted this 14th day of September, 2020, by a roll call vote as follows: 


 


AYES: 


NAYS: 


ABSTAIN: 


ABSENT: 


 


___________________________ 


President, Board of Trustees 


Barrington Public Library District 


ATTEST: 


___________________________ 


Secretary, Board of Trustees 


Barrington Public Library District 








MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BARRINGTON 


PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT AND THE BARRINGTON BREAKFAST ROTARY CLUB FOR THE PURPOSES OF 


ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING A TEACHING GARDEN 


 


This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) sets forth the terms and understanding between the 


Board of Trustees of the Barrington Public Library District (“District”) and the Barrington Breakfast 


Rotary Club (“Rotary”) regarding the Teaching Garden on the Barrington Area Library campus. 


1. Background 


In 2019, following a District HVAC renovation project and subsequent demolition of a cooling tower, the 


District was left with an unimproved portion of the Barrington Area Library’s campus in need of soil 


remediation. Library staff enlisted the assistance of the University of Illinois Extension Master Gardeners 


to reimagine the unimproved area as a space for library programs and community enjoyment. Such a 


space, the Teaching Garden, would have a strong focus on cultivating native and pollinator plants, 


educating Library customers about sustainable gardening, and providing an improved space on the 


library campus for community members using the multipurpose trail behind the library building. 


The Barrington Breakfast Rotary’s Environment Committee approached the District searching for 


projects in need of funding that serve the Committee’s goals of improving environmental features in the 


Barrington area and promoting sustainability in the region. Through a series of meetings composed of 


District staff and Committee members, a partnership between the District and Rotary was formed to 


establish the Teaching Garden with a combination of Rotary donated funds and District funds. 


2. Purpose 


The goals of the Teaching Garden are to: 


 Provide an outdoor learning space for District library programs. 


 Provide an outdoor space for non-exclusive use by community members. 


 Raise awareness of the Rotary’s commitment to improving the environment of the Barrington 


area. 


In service of these goals, the District will: 


1. Design, develop, and manage all processes related to the library programs detailed above. 


2. Coordinate, according to District policy, the efforts of all volunteers, service professionals, or 


other paid staff related to any activity in the Teaching Garden. 


3. Direct the design and layout of the Teaching Garden, including the placement of any permanent 


or temporary fixtures or garden features, the selection and placement of any plants, and the 


landscaping techniques to be employed in the Teaching Garden. 


4. Maintain, through the enlistment of volunteers, service professionals, or other paid staff, the 


Teaching Garden grounds, District-owned fixtures and features, and any pathways according to 


District landscaping standards. 


5. Provide space for signage or features bearing the Rotary’s name or mark, subject to the design 


and placement discretion of the District described above. 







6. Provide the Rotary three reserved uses of the Teaching Garden per year, subject to the 


scheduling discretion of the District and its Meeting Rooms Policy. 


In service of these goals, the Rotary will: 


1. Provide and maintain all signage or features bearing the Rotary’s name or mark, subject to the 


design and placement discretion of the District described above. 


2. Provide the services of Rotary volunteers to be directed by the District from time to time for the 


purposes described in this MOU. 


3. Provide all personnel, supplies, and any other resources required for the Rotary to exercise their 


reserved uses of the Garden in compliance with the District’s Meeting Rooms Policy. 


3. Funding 


Ongoing costs for all care and maintenance of the Teaching Garden grounds and District-owned features 


and fixtures are the sole responsibility of the District.  


Costs for the fabrication and installation of any signage or features bearing the Rotary’s name or mark 


are the sole responsibility of the Rotary. 


Outside of these two commitments, this MOU should not be considered a commitment of funds for any 


other purposes by the District and Rotary. 


4. Non-Enforceability 


This MOU is a non-binding statement of the District and Rotary’s mutual understanding of their 


proposed partnership. This MOU is not intended to create any legally enforceable rights or obligations in 


respect of either party, including any obligation on their part to enter into any supplemental agreements 


related to this MOU. 


5. Duration 


This MOU is at-will and may be modified by the mutual consent of authorized individuals from the 


District and Rotary. This MOU shall become effective upon signature by the authorized officials from the 


District and Rotary and will remain in effect until modified or terminated by any one of the partners by 


mutual consent. In the absence of mutual agreement by the authorized officials from the District and 


Rotary, this MOU shall end on September 14, 2022. 


 


___________________________ 


President, Board of Trustees of the  


Barrington Public Library District 


__________________________ 


President, Barrington Breakfast  


Rotary Club 


 








 


 
Social media engagement snapshot – AUGUST 2020 


 


 
 
  


AUDIENCE: 
Facebook Total Page Follows: 3,939 
Twitter Total Followers: 3,889 
Instagram Total Followers: 1,517 


There’s always something unique happening on our lovely campus. This month, it was the arrival of 
a Luna moth, who took up a spot on the pedestal of our statue of a reading mother and child. Photos 
and a few words about Luna got a very positive response, with 120 likes and favorites and 5 
comments. 


Our Youth and Adult Services departments 
have been writing blog posts for the Library 
website for the last few months. These make 
great content for social media, like this 
Facebook post featuring Librarian Corinne 
Groble’s post about homebound services. The 
post had 18 likes, 3 comments, and 4 shares.  


Our top tweet of the month amplified 
District 220’s messaging about their 
Parent University sessions. The whole 
community benefits from this type of 
information sharing. 







 
 
  
 
 
 


  


 


 


 
Sometimes social posts 
promote events in advance – 
and sometimes they make 
customers realize what they’re 
missing! This photo from a 
Zoom art class prompted 
several requests for additional 
programming in this vein. 


Our reading statue featured in 
two popular posts this month: 
this tweet had 13 likes and 25 
click-throughs to see the larger 
photo. 


Fan mail always makes our day! 








MEMBERSHIP CHECKOUTS
23,946 141 49,360
current cardholders                                                                   new cardholders total checkouts


COLLECTION
185,897 19,548
library items                     digital subscription uses


OUTREACH CONTACTS  - 15


0
locker SPACE


deliveries 7,808
library visits


2,799 0 0 0


outreach meeting room study room MakerLab


returns
uses uses visits


PROGRAMS TECHNOLOGY
58 programs offered 6,941 0 104,687


wi-fi internet website
sessions computer uses hits


TOP CIRCULATING TITLES 
2,015 total program attendance  28 Summers by Elin Hilderbrand           


Camino Winds by John Grisham


The Splendid and the Vile by Erik Larson


Too Much and Never Enough by Mary L. Trump


Where the Crawdads Sing by Delia Owens


1 one-on-one sessions


STATISTICS AUGUST 2020  (COVID-19)


37 16 3 2


YS AS DS YA


1,459 486 42 28 


YS AS DS YA


00 1


Youth Adult Digital


19
,9


81
 


10
,3


95
 


9,
38


8 


86
2 


34
7 3,


95
7 


52
9 


58
9 3,
27


7 


35
 


CHECKOUTS BY MATERIAL 
TYPE


125
8


7


0


YS Outreach Contacts


AS Outreach Contacts


Digital Outreach Contacts


COVID-19 -
ROOMS NOT YET AVAILABLE





		Stats Summary Board Report






Barrington Area Library
Teaching Garden
Project Narrative


The Teaching Garden is a proposed site improvement on the eastern side of the Barrington Area Library’s 
campus to provide a space for community and special library programming.


The Teaching Garden is a joint project between the library, the Barrington Breakfast Rotary, and the University 
of Illinois Extension Master Gardeners. The Garden will provide a teaching space for library customers to 
learn about gardening and native pollinator plants. Additionally, the Garden will provide seed for the library’s 
ongoing Seed Library service, which distributes free seed to residents looking to start their own gardens.


Library programming in the space will include gardening workshops for children and adults, ‘work days’ in the 
garden for interested volunteers, and potentially small-scale storytelling programs for families.


Outside of library-specific programming, the Garden will be an excellent place for residents using the library 
footpath between Citizens’ Park and the Garlands to stop and rest or meet with other community members. In 
partnership with the Library, community groups could volunteer to tend the space or use it for small events.


An additional benefit of the Garden is the remediation of two portions of the library site: one previously 
occupied by the library’s demolished air conditioning cooling tower and the other an unused plot previously 
overrun with buckthorn and construction material.







Proposed Garden Area Existing Paver Path Sample







Barrington Area Library
Teaching Garden
Project Budget


SOURCES
BALibrary


Pilot Programs Fund 5,000.00$               
Gift Fund 12,985.00$             


17,985.00$             


Barrington Breakfast Rotary
Donation 9,445.00$               


9,445.00$               


TOTAL SOURCES 27,430.00$             


EXPENDITURES
Landscaping


Soil Remediation 1,950.00$               
Permeable Paver Path 7,920.00$               
Granite Garden Border 2,945.00$               


12,815.00$             


Furniture and Fixtures
Split-Rail Fence 2,200.00$               
Benches (2) and Installation 11,500.00$             


13,700.00$             


Total Project Cost 26,515.00$             
Project Contingency (3%) 915.00$                   


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 27,430.00$             
PROJECT NET -$                         








Director’s Report – August 2020 


Administrative Notes 


 The District is applying for FEMA Public Assistance and county CARES grants, with final 


submission to follow by the end of September. 


 Administration and IT staff are working to convert the manual Purchase Request workflow to a 


digital format. 


 Management is exploring a virtual version of the annual In-Service Day for staff. 


Library Service Notes 


 Browse and Borrow services continued through August. 


 Service to remote pickup lockers has resumed. 


 Overdue notices for items retained after the closure have restarted. 


Library Service in the Future (Service Iteration 3 – September 14 – October 26) 


 Computer reservations in Business Technology will restart after a ‘soft open’ in mid-September. 


 Borrow by mail options will be enabled for reserved item pickup. Borrow by mail will be 


assessed as a winter season replacement for Parking Lot Pickup. 


 Fines-free policy is enacted. 


Summer Reading Update 


 983 participants (-57%) 


 Readers were more active this year than last (63% active in 2020 compared to 55% in 2019) 


 Readers completed the program at a higher rate this year (42% compared to 34%) 


 Readers read more per person than last year – an increase of 718 minutes per reader (130%). 


 Take the time to smile and wave at a neighbor throughout your day. How did that make you 


feel? 


“Today I smiled and waved at my neighbors. It made me feel happy knowing that I might have 


just made someone’s day a little better.” 


-G.R. 7th Grade 


Special Statistics Report (8/7 – 9/3) 


What is our ‘reach’ right now? 


Reach is the number of unique library users in a given time period. We want reach to increase. 


 Digital reach (OverDrive) – 2,604 customers, up 4.3% since 8/7. 


 Physical reach – 1816 customers, up 200% since 8/7. 


 Total reach, excluding overlap – 3,991 


 Over this period, 35% of users are physical-only, 55% are digital-only, and 10% use both. 


How ‘efficient’ are customers’ visits with respect to our collection? 


Efficiency is measured by total items checked out per visit. We want efficiency to increase. 


 Customers checked out 4.6 items per visit over this period. 







Who is visiting? 


We want the percentage of transactions by a given customer class to match their share of all customer 


cards. 


 81% of unique visitors have Adult Resident cards. Adult Resident cardholders compose 61% of 


all cards. Adults are visiting more often than other groups. 


 7.81% of unique visitors have Juvenile Resident cards. Juvenile Resident cards compose 13% of 


all cards. Kids are visiting less often than other groups. 


 5.98% of unique visitors are Reciprocal Borrowers. These cards compose 17.5% of all cards. 


Reciprocal Borrowers are visiting less often than other groups. 


How is door count changing? 


Door count is not a good measure of the success of library interventions, rather, it is an ‘input’ for all 


other outputs. An increase in door count without an increase in other metrics has no meaning outside of 


customers visiting and not finding what they are looking for. 


 Door count is steadily increasing – each week that goes by we see 8% more customers on 


average. 


 


Community Notes 


Met with the Barrington Breakfast Rotary’s Environment Committee to present the Teaching Garden 


and secured a $9,455 donation. 


Met with North Suburban library directors to discuss CARES Act and FEMA Public Assistance grant 


funding. 


Met with District 220 Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Schools and Operations, and 


Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning to discuss potential library interventions during 


remote learning and IGA for student cardholdership. 


Met with Barrington Park District Executive Director and Superintendent of Recreation to discuss KEEP 


2.0 program and collaboration between the library and the Park District. 


Met with Village of Barrington Village Manager and other municipal heads for bi-weekly program and 


service updates. 





